## **AGREEMENT**

## **BETWEEN**

## THE MONMOUTH COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS

**AND** 

THE COMMUNICATIONS WORKERS OF AMERICA, AFL-CIO, LOCAL 1075
[MOSQUITO CONTROL DIVISION UNIT]

January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017

## **Table of Contents**

Preamble	1
Article 1 Recognition	2
Article 2 Union Security	3
Article 3 Shop Steward	4
Article 4 Management Rights	6
Article 5 Grievance Procedure	7
Article 6 Salary/Promotional/Pay Cycle	9
Article 7 Seniority	11
Article 8 Hours of Work & Overtime	13
Article 9 Out of Title Pay	15
Article 10 Unit Work	16
Article 11 Dress Code	17
Article 12 Holidays	18
Article 13 Vacations	19
Article 14 Leaves	21

24
25
28
29
30
31
32
33
35

#### **PREAMBLE**

This Agreement ("Agreement") is by and between the Monmouth County Board of Chosen Freeholders ("County" or "Employer") and the Communication Workers of America, AFL-CIO, Local 1075 ("Union"), pursuant to the provisions of the New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act ("Act"), N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1 et seq., and has as its purpose to promote and ensure harmonious relations, cooperation and understanding between the parties; to establish rates of pay, hours of work and other conditions of employment; to provide for an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences; and to prescribe the respective rights and duties of each party to the extent not otherwise established by law. This Agreement is not intended to modify any of the discretionary authority vested in the County by the laws or regulations of the state of New Jersey.

**ARTICLE 1** RECOGNITION

Pursuant to a Memorandum of Agreement entered into by the parties on

April 5, 2016, the County recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative, for the purpose

of establishing salaries, wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment for non-

professional and administrative employees of the County's Mosquito Control Division, but

excluding managerial executives, confidential employees, supervisors within the meaning of the

Act, craft employees, professional employees including entomologists and research scientists,

police, casual employees [including seasonal employees], and all other employees. The

recognition date of this negotiations unit is retroactive to January 1, 2015.

Section 2. Any new title authorized for use by the Employer may be negotiated for

inclusion into the negotiations unit. In the event the Employer and the Union cannot reach

agreement on a particular title, then that title will remain excluded from the negotiations unit

until the final resolution of the dispute by the New Jersey Public Employment Relations

Commission ("PERC").

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

**ARTICLE 2 UNION SECURITY** 

**Section 1.** The Employer will give effect to the following form of Union Security:

(a) All present employees who are members of the Union on the effective date of this Agreement may remain members of the Union in good standing by payment of

the regular monthly dues to the Union.

At the time of hire, newly hired employees who are within the negotiations unit (b)

will be informed by a Steward that they have the opportunity to join the Union or

pay to the Union a representation fee in lieu of dues.

**Section 2.** The Employer agrees to deduct from the wages of employees, by means of a

check-off, the dues uniformly required by the Union. The Employer, after receipt of a written

authorization from an individual employee, agrees to deduct from the salary of said employee

monthly dues and initiation fees. Such deductions shall be made from the first salary paid during

the month. In making the deductions and transmittals as above specified, the Employer shall rely

upon the most recent communication from the Union as to the amount of monthly dues and the

initiation fees.

**Section 3.** If an employee chooses not to become a member of the Union, then he or she

will be required to pay a representation fee in lieu of dues to the Union. The purpose of this fee

will be to offset the employee's cost of services rendered by the Union as majority representative.

The representation fee to be paid by non-members will be equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of

the regular membership dues charged by the Union to its own members as permitted by N.J.S.A.

34:13A-5.5 through 5.8, and as that law may be amended.

Section 4. The Union agrees to hold the County harmless from any action taken by the

County pursuant to the provisions of this Article.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

ARTICLE 3
SHOP STEWARD

Section 1. The Union may name one (1) Steward and one (1) alternate Steward. The

Union will provide written notification to the Employer of the names of the Steward and

alternate Steward, as well as any changes in designation when they occur.

Section 2. Stewards shall restrict their activities to the handling of grievances. A

Steward shall be allowed a reasonable amount of time for the handling of grievances, but only to

the extent it does not neglect, retard or otherwise interfere with the Steward's work duties or with

the work duties of other employees in any manner. A Steward must ask his or her immediate

supervisor for permission to investigate and adjust grievances during work hours. Such

permission shall not be unreasonably withheld, consistent with the above provisions.

Section 3. With the exception of processing grievance matters and negotiating contracts,

Stewards will not be allowed to transact any Union business during regular working hours.

Stewards shall not be paid for time spent in grievance meetings when such meetings are not

scheduled during normal work hours.

Section 4. The Union shall be allocated sixteen (16) hours of paid leave per year for

authorized Union business. Leave pursuant to this provision shall be granted upon written

authorization submitted by the Union to the Employer, through its designee, indicating the name

or names of the individuals and when their absence will be required. In order to facilitate

scheduling, advance notice of the use of leave time shall be provided at least one (1) week before

use. Use of Union leave time shall not be unreasonably denied.

Section 5. An authorized representative of the Union may have access to the Employer's

facilities on application to the Superintendent of the Mosquito Control Division

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

("Superintendent"). The representative shall not interfere with employees or cause them to neglect their work. While any such representative is on County property, the Union shall hold the County harmless against any injuries or accidents that may occur to that individual.

ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

**Section 1.** It is recognized that the County retains and reserves unto itself, without

limitation, all of the powers, rights, authorities, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and

vested in it by the laws and constitutions of the state of New Jersey and of the United States.

**Section 2.** Among the rights retained by the Employer are the right to direct the work

force; to plan, direct and control all the operations and services of the Mosquito Control

Division; to determine the methods, means, organization and personnel by which such operations

and services are to be conducted; to set minimum salaries for all covered titles, provided that

such minimums shall be first disclosed to the Union prior to implementation, and provided

further that no employee in an affected title shall be paid less than any newly established

minimum; to contract or subcontract out services; to relieve employees due to lack of work or for

other legitimate reasons; to make and enforce reasonable rules and regulations (such rules shall

be equitably applied and enforced); or to change or eliminate existing methods, equipment or

facilities.

Section 3. The exercise of any of the above rights shall not conflict with any of the

express written provisions of this Agreement.

Section 4. The above-noted management rights are not exclusive and shall in no way be

deemed to exclude any other management right not specifically set forth but that may be

reasonably exercisable by the Employer.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

## ARTICLE 5 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

**Section 1.** A "grievance" is defined as a claim by an employee that he or she has been harmed by an interpretation or application of this Agreement.

**Section 2.** To be considered under this procedure, a grievance must be initiated within five (5) working days from the time when the cause for the grievance occurred.

**Section 3.** The following procedures shall be the sole means of obtaining adjustment of a grievance. Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit a grievant to proceed to the next step. Failure at any step of this procedure to appeal a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be a waiver of further appeals of the decision.

STEP 1. The grievance, when it first arises, shall be taken up between the employee, a Steward, and the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall give an oral or a written decision on the grievance, or advise he or she does not have the authority to resolve the issue(s) raised in the grievance, within five (5) working days thereafter.

**STEP 2**. If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at Step 1, the grievance shall be reduced to writing within five (5) working days thereafter. The grievance must state the specific provision of the Agreement brought into question and it shall be served by the Chief Steward upon the County Administrator, or designee. Within five (5) working days thereafter, the grievance shall be discussed between the County Administrator or designee, and a representative of the Union. The County Administrator shall give a written decision to the Union within ten (10) working days thereafter.

<u>STEP 3</u>. If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at Step 2, then the Union may request arbitration within ten (10) working days after the decision at Step 2 is given or due. A request for arbitration shall be submitted directly to PERC, with a copy sent to the Superintendent, asking PERC to aid the selection of an arbitrator pursuant to its rules and regulations.

**Section 4.** The Arbitrator shall have the power to hear and determine the dispute and issue a final and binding decision, but shall have no authority to change, modify, alter, substitute, add to, or subtract from any of the provisions of this Agreement.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL **Section 5.** The parties shall share equally the fees and expenses of the Arbitrator. All other costs shall be borne solely by the party incurring them.

**Section 6.** No dispute arising out of any questions pertaining to the renewal of this Agreement shall be subject to the arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

**Section 7.** Any of the time frames established by this Article may be extended or waived by mutual written consent of the parties.

ARTICLE 6
SALARY/PROMOTIONAL PAY/PAY CYCLE

**Section 1.** All employees in the negotiations unit at any time during 2015 shall receive a

2.75% increase to base pay, effective and retroactive to January 1, 2015 or the date they joined

the negotiations unit, if after January 1, 2015.

Section 2. All employees in the negotiations unit as of December 31, 2015 shall receive

a 2.75% increase to base pay, effective and retroactive to January 1, 2016.

Section 3. All employees in the negotiations unit as of December 31, 2016 shall receive

a 2.75% increase to base pay, effective January 1, 2017.

Section 4. Additionally, in recognition of the unique and specialized duties of certain

members of this negotiations unit, which require those employees to at times perform their work

in extremely challenging conditions, there shall be an additional increase of \$500 in base pay to

each negotiations unit member on January 1 of each year of the Agreement, which shall be

implemented before the annual base pay percentage increase. This annual increase shall not

survive the expiration date of this Agreement.

For 2015 only, anyone joining the negotiations unit after January 1 of that year shall be

entitled to this increase, except it shall be pro-rated based upon when he or she joined the

negotiations unit. For 2016 and 2017, anyone joining the negotiations unit after January 1 of a

year shall not be entitled to any increase for that year.

**Section 5.** Employees must be on the payroll as of the date this Agreement was ratified

by the Union's membership to be eligible for any retroactive salary payments.

Section 6. Minimum salaries shall remain unchanged during the term of this Agreement.

Section 7. Employees who are promoted or reclassified to another title with a higher

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

salary range shall have their salary adjusted so that it provides an increase in pay of three percent (3%) or entry level salary for the new title, whichever is greater.

**Section 8.** Effective January 1, 2016, the County is permitted to change the pay cycle so that an employee's annual salary will be paid in 24 semi-monthly installments.

ARTICLE 7
SENIORITY

Section 1. Seniority is defined as an employee's total length of service with the County,

beginning with the last date of hire. For purposes of this Article, employees with prior service

with the Monmouth County Mosquito Extermination Commission shall also have that time

credited towards their seniority.

Section 2. Seniority in classification will be considered in transfers and reassignments in

accordance with New Jersey Civil Service Commission ("Civil Service Commission")

regulations, though the County shall have the final authority to reassign or transfer an employee

as work load dictates. Seniority shall be given preference only in promotions, demotions, layoff,

recall, and vacation schedule where the ability to perform the work required is equal, as

determined by the Employer.

Section 3. An employee discharged while serving a provisional or temporary

appointment, or released at the end of a working test period, shall not have recourse to the

Grievance Procedure in Article 5 of this Agreement and must instead utilize the procedures

available through the Civil Service Commission to appeal such discharge or release.

Section 4. The Employer shall endeavor to post all notices of job vacancies and newly

created positions for a period of five (5) working days prior to filling such vacancies or positions.

A copy of all job postings shall be provided to the Union, through the Steward. The filling of

such vacancies and positions shall be subject to Civil Service Commission regulations. An

appropriate representative of the Employer shall interview each interested employee and

thereafter provide reasons to each interested employee who is not promoted to fill a vacancy or

position, if requested.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

Section 5. If a reduction of force becomes necessary, it shall take place in accordance

with Civil Service Commission regulations.

Section 6. The County shall maintain a seniority roster showing each employee's date of

hire, classification and pay rate and shall furnish copies of same to the Union upon reasonable

request. If such a list is provided, the Union shall have forty-five (45) days thereafter to notify

the Employer of any written objections to the accuracy of the roster; and if such written

objections are not so presented by the Union, then the roster shall be deemed accurate for all

purposes under this Agreement.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

ARTICLE 8
HOURS OF WORK & OVERTIME

Section 1. The standard work day for employees shall consist of eight (8) hours at work

exclusive of a one-half (½) hour unpaid lunch period. Included in the standard work day shall be

two (2) paid fifteen (15) minute breaks. Both the lunch period and breaks shall be scheduled in

the reasonable discretion of the Employer, however, the lunch period shall normally be scheduled

between 11:00 A.M. and 12:30 P.M., and breaks may not be scheduled during the first or last

fifteen (15) minutes of the work day.

Normal working hours for operational field staff are from 7:00 A.M. until 3:30 P.M.

Normal working hours for office staff may vary at the discretion of the Employer so as to

provide coverage as needed between 7:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M. During mosquito season, which

is defined for purposes of this Agreement as between April 1<sup>st</sup> and October 31<sup>st</sup>, the Employer

may vary the work day of the operational field staff as needed for the effectiveness of its

operations, which may include work at nights.

Section 2. The standard workweek shall consist of five (5) consecutive days, Monday

through Friday, and shall be forty (40) hours in length.

Section 3. All employees shall receive time and one half (1 and ½) the regular hourly

rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in any given week. All employees

shall be compensated at one and one-half (1 and  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) times the regular hourly rate of pay for work

performed on weekends. Employees working on weekends shall be paid for at least three (3)

hours of work, regardless of the length of the weekend assignment, excluding educational

presentations.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

Section 4. If an employee is called back to work after the completion of a normal work

shift, he or she shall be entitled to a minimum of three (3) hours pay at the overtime rate.

Section 5. Employees are expected to perform a reasonable amount of overtime based

upon the Employer's needs. The County recognizes it may be inconvenient for individual

employees to work overtime and it will give due consideration to each request for relief from

overtime work. However, the parties agree that the Employer shall be the sole judge as to the

necessity for overtime work.

**Section 6.** Scheduled overtime will be distributed by seniority of title on a voluntary,

rotating basis among employees qualified and capable of performing the work available. In an

off-hours emergency situation, the Employer shall have the managerial right to select an

appropriate specialist to respond, but if the emergency does not require specific skills, overtime

will be offered on a rotating basis, with full-time, permanent employees being offered the

overtime opportunity first.

**Section 7.** The Employer may vary an employee's work schedule during the week(s) of

the annual Monmouth County Fair. It will first seek volunteers (which may include employees

outside the negotiations unit) to represent it at the Fair, but may require employees to do so if

there are not sufficient volunteers, using reverse order of seniority. The Employer shall retain

the right to determine that only employees with specific skills or knowledge may represent the

County at the Fair at any particular time. In the event of operational needs, the Employer, at its

sole discretion, may treat the Fair as an overtime assignment instead of varying work schedules.

**Section 8.** Sick leave, unauthorized absences, suspension time and late reporting to work

will <u>not</u> be included as hours worked for determining whether an employee is entitled to

overtime at a rate of time and one-half (1 and  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) under Section 3 of this Article.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

# ARTICLE 9 OUT OF TITLE PAY

**Section 1.** When an employee is authorized by the Superintendent to perform the functions of a higher classified position for more than five (5) consecutive working days, starting on the sixth day the employee shall receive additional compensation equal to three percent (3%) of base pay or the minimum rate for the higher classified position, whichever is higher. The Employer shall not manipulate the scheduling of personnel so as to avoid its obligations hereunder.

### ARTICLE 10 UNIT WORK

**Section 1.** Consistent with existing practice, the Employer may continue to use personnel who are not in the negotiations unit to perform work that may also be performed by members of the negotiations unit (e.g., entomologists may continue to perform pesticide spraying duties, inspections, larviciding and surveillance as necessary and warranted), provided the work is within the reasonable scope of an employee's job specification.

# ARTICLE 11 DRESS CODE/UNIFORMS

Each employee is expected to dress appropriately as a representative of the County. The County reserves the managerial right to determine appropriate dress code standards for each job title, and shall keep the Uniform Committee apprised of same. The County shall annually provide full-time operational field staff with three (3) shirts. Employees may choose whether they want short sleeve collared shirts, long sleeve collared shirts or long sleeve tee shirts, or any combination thereof. The County also shall annually provide these employees with two (2) pairs of jeans and one (1) pair of work boots, along with one (1) hooded sweatshirt every other year. Employees shall also be provided with rubber boots as needed. All clothing issued by the County shall be kept clean and in good order.

**ARTICLE 12** HOLIDAYS

**Section 1.** The following thirteen (13) days are recognized as paid holidays: New Year's

Day, Martin Luther King's Birthday, President's Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day,

Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, General Election Day, Veteran's Day,

Thanksgiving Day, the Day after Thanksgiving and Christmas Day.

To be eligible for holiday pay, an employee must work the scheduled workday before and

the scheduled workday after the holiday, unless that day is an excused absence with pay or the

employee presents extenuating circumstances in writing, in which case the Employer, in its sole

discretion, may approve holiday pay.

Section 2. Employees who are recalled to work duty on any of the holidays listed in

Section 1 shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1 and ½) times the employee's regular rate

for each hour worked, with a three (3) hour minimum work period.

Section 3. If a holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be celebrated and compensated on the

Friday preceding said holiday. If a holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be celebrated and

compensated on the Monday following said holiday.

**Section 4.** If a holiday falls while an employee is on an approved vacation day, the

employee shall not be charged a vacation day for that holiday.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

# ARTICLE 13 VACATIONS

- **Section 1.** The Employer will grant full-time employees paid vacation leave in accordance with the following schedule:
  - (a) One (1) working day for the initial month of employment if the employee begins work on the 1st through the 8th day of the calendar month, and one-half (½) working day if the employee begins work on the 9th through the 23rd day of the month. No credit if the employee begins work on after the 24<sup>th</sup> day of the month.
  - (b) One (1) working day per month worked for the remainder of the first calendar year of employment.
  - (c) Twelve (12) working days per year after the first calendar year and up to and including five (5) years of service earned at one day per month.
  - (d) Fifteen (15) working days per year beyond five (5) years and up to and including twelve (12) years of service earned at the rate of one-and-one-quarter days (1 and ½) per month.
  - (e) Twenty (20) working days per year beyond twelve (12) years and up to and including twenty (20) years of service earned at the rate of one-and-two-thirds (1 and <sup>2</sup>/<sub>3</sub>) days per month.
  - (f) Twenty-five (25) working days per year after twenty (20) years of service earned at the rate of two-and-one-twelfth (2 and 1/12) days per month.
- **Section 2.** Employees will be credited for a year of service in determining time served for their vacation time no matter when an employee began his or her employment, inclusive of service with the Monmouth County Mosquito Extermination Commission.
- **Section 3.** If the County grants additional paid vacation leave to all of its unrepresented employees, it shall also be granted to employees covered by this Agreement.
- **Section 4.** All employees covered by this Agreement will comply with County policy regarding vacation carryover. Except in highly unusual circumstances, employees are expected to utilize their vacation leave in the year in which it is earned.

**Section 5.** The Employer shall have the right to deny extended vacations (defined as in excess of three (3) consecutive working days) between Memorial Day and Labor Day.

**Section 6.** Requests for vacation must be submitted via the form provided for that purpose to the Superintendent, or designee. Vacation requests shall be submitted in advance according to the following schedule:

Amount Requested	Request Submission Deadline
Two (2) or less days	48 hours in advance
Three (3) to five (5) days	7 days in advance
More than five (5) days	14 days in advance

Regardless of the length of vacation leave requested, the Employer reserves the right to deny vacation leave depending upon its reasonable staffing needs. If more than one (1) employee requests vacation during the same period, and all employees cannot be accommodated, then seniority shall prevail.

ARTICLE 14 LEAVES

Section 1. Sick Leave. Sick leave is defined as an employee's absence from his or her

post of duty because of illness, accident, exposure to contagious disease, or attendance upon a

seriously ill member of the employee's immediate family requiring the employee's constant care.

Full-time eligible employees shall earn sick leave according to the following schedule:

1. One (1) working day for the initial month of employment if the employee begins work on the 1st through the 8th day of the calendar month, and one-half (½)

work on the 1st through the 8th day of the calendar month, and one-half (72) working day if the employee begins work on the 9th through the 23rd day of the

month.

2. After the initial month of employment and up to the end of the first calendar year,

employees shall be credited with one (1) working day of paid sick leave for each

month of service.

3. One and one-quarter (11/4) days per month worked during each year thereafter.

Permanent part-time employees shall receive proportionate amounts of paid sick leave. Sick

leave will accumulate from year to year.

The use of sick leave is subject to reasonable notification and verification procedures, as

may be established by the Employer from time to time. Any time an employee uses sick leave

for a personal medical condition, the Employer shall have the right to require a require an

employee to provide a medical certificate from the employee's treating medical professional

stating the employee can return to regular duty and such return will not jeopardize the health of

the employee or others.

Eligibility for payment for unused sick leave, if any, will be in accordance with the terms

and conditions set forth by County Policy 383.

Section 2. Personal Days. A full-time employee is entitled to three (3) personal leave

days per year for the transaction of personal business. Except in case of emergency, employees

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 must request to use personal leave in writing, which shall be provided to the Superintendent or

designee at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the proposed date of the leave. Approval of

personal leave days shall not be unreasonably withheld. Personal leave days cannot be

accumulated from year to year.

Section 3. Bereavement Days. Paid Bereavement leave for up to five (5) days will be

granted for a death in the employee's immediate family, meaning the employee's spouse, civil

union partner, domestic partner, parent, step-parent, child or step-child. Paid Bereavement leave

for up to three (3) days will be granted for a death in the employee's non-immediate family,

meaning the employee's parent-in-law, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, foster child, or other

member of the immediate household. With the Employer's approval, an employee may also use

any other available paid leave, such as vacation time, if he/she needs additional time off for the

death of a family member, or time off relating to the death of a friend or relation not referenced

above. The Employer reserves the right to verify the legal relationship of the decedent to the

employee.

Section 4. Jury Duty. Employees shall be given time off without loss of pay when they

are performing jury duty; when they are summoned to appear as a witness before a court,

legislative committee or judicial or quasi-judicial body, unless the appearance is as a party to the

litigation in a matter unrelated to their capacity as an employee or officer of the agency; or when

performing emergency civilian duty in relation to national defense or other emergency when so

ordered by the Governor of New Jersey or the President of the United States. A copy of the

subpoena or order to appear must be furnished to the Employer prior to any absence under this

Section. Employees serving on jury duty shall be entitled to receive their usual compensation

for each day of jury service, however, any compensation received by an employee while

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 receiving full pay while on jury duty shall be endorsed by the employee to the County, as required by N.J.S.A. 2B:20-16.

**Section 5.** <u>Family/Medical Leave</u>. Employees shall abide by County policy with respect to family/medical leave.

# ARTICLE 15 BULLETIN BOARD

**Section 1.** The County will provide bulletin board space for the Union to post formal notices of meetings, elections, the names of representatives and officers of the Union, and other general matters concerning the business of the Union.

**Section 2.** All notices shall be presented to and reviewed by the Employer prior to being posted.

ARTICLE 16 HEALTH BENEFITS

Section 1. It is agreed that the County will offer a medical point of service plan for

employees covered by this Agreement. Employees shall pay the amount required by current

New Jersey law as a contribution towards the County's cost of providing this plan, which shall

not be less than 1.5% of base salary. The parties agree that should an employee voluntarily

waive all coverage under the County's health plan, and provide proof of coverage from a source

other than the County, the County will waive the required contribution for the employee. Such

employee contributions shall be placed by the County into an IRS type 125 cafeteria plan so that

it shall be tax free for Federal tax purposes, in accordance with New Jersey law.

Section 2. The County shall continue to maintain a traditional indemnity medical

insurance program, as is currently provided on a self-insured basis. However, any employee

opting to participate in such program shall be responsible for a portion of the premium costs and

made through automatic payroll deductions. The portion of the premium costs for which the

employee shall be responsible shall be no less than 1.5% of the employee's annual base salary or

any greater amount required by New Jersey law. Such employee contributions shall be placed

by the County into an IRS type 125 cafeteria plan so that it shall be tax free for Federal tax

purposes, in accordance with New Jersey law.

**Section 3.** The provisions of Resolution #94-267, as adopted by the Board of Chosen

Freeholders, shall continue to apply, and the County's traditional indemnity medical insurance

program shall not be offered nor available to employees hired on July 1, 1994 or thereafter. A

copy of Resolution #94-267 is attached hereto as an Appendix.

Section 4. Negotiations unit members, and those employees receiving benefits under

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

the County temporary disability program, shall be provided with the prescription insurance plan established by the County. All existing prescription drug co-pays shall remain unchanged unless and until such time as these co-pays are increased for the County's employees not represented for purposes of collective negotiations. Co-pays shall be limited to the lesser of the amount paid by the County's non-represented employees or the following:

Non-Mail Order

Retail (brand)

\$20.00 (current \$20.00)

Generics

\$10.00 (current \$5.00)

90 days Mail Order

Retail (brand)

\$15.00 (current \$15.00)

Generics

\$5.00 (current \$0.00)

**Section 5.** Part-time employees are eligible for health benefit coverage if they work and receive, on a continuous basis, a salary based on a minimum of thirty (30) hours weekly. Temporary employees are not eligible for these benefits.

**Section 6.** The County shall make available to employees a voluntary employee-funded dental insurance plan.

**Section 7.** Employees shall be provided at a minimum with the full amount of statutory compensation established by <u>N.J.S.A.</u> 34:15-12(a) and/or applicable law. The terms and conditions of an Employee's entitlement to any enhanced benefits due to a work-incurred injury or disability shall be identical to those set by existing general County policy or any future amendments thereto.

**Section 8.** A memorandum of agreement executed by the parties regarding certain modifications to the County's health care and pharmaceutical plans is attached to this Agreement an appendix and is incorporated herein.

Section 9. The parties agree that where there is an individualized reasonable suspicion

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL that an employee is using a controlled substance or alcohol, then the County may test that individual. Any such test will be conducted in accordance with the specimen collection policy procedures set forth in the CDL substance abuse testing policy as adopted by the County by formal resolution.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL ARTICLE 17 SEPARATION, DISCHARGE AND DISCIPLINE

Section 1. Separation from service of the Employer may result from an employee's

voluntary resignation or by the Employer's termination of the employee's services. Employees

who wish to terminate their services shall provide notification to the Superintendent or the

County's Director of Human Resources at least two (2) weeks prior to the effective date of

resignation in order for the resignation to be recorded as in good standing. Such notification may

be delivered verbally or in writing, and should provide the date and reason for leaving

employment. The Employer may accept an immediate oral resignation, but such resignation will

not be considered in good standing unless differently recorded by the Employer.

Section 2. When the County suspends or dismisses an employee, it shall notify the

Union of such action unless otherwise directed by the affected employee.

Section 3. Written warnings and written oral reprimands will be not be used for

progressive disciplinary purposes after one (1) year, provided there is no other discipline during

that period.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

ARTICLE 18 VETERANS RIGHTS AND BENEFITS

Section 1. The seniority rights of an employee who enlists or is drafted into military

service pursuant to law shall be maintained during the period of military service. Any such

employee shall have the right to reinstatement to his or her former position or to a position of

equal status at the salary rate previously received, along with all salary increases granted by the

Employer to the employee's former position during the period of the employee's military

service.

Section 2. A veteran shall be reinstated upon his or her application made within ninety

(90) days after honorable discharge from service. This clause shall be subject to all pertinent and

applicable provisions of law.

Section 3. An employee in the military reserve forces of the United States who is called

to active duty shall maintain his or her seniority rights and shall be entitled to pay in the amount

of the difference between his or her service pay and eight (8) hours straight time pay for time

lost.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

viay 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

### ARTICLE 19 COMMITTEES

**Section 1.** A joint Union and County Safety and Health Committee shall be established to review safety and health issues affecting employees within the negotiations unit. Each party shall designate up to two (2) members of the Committee. The Employer shall schedule a meeting of the Committee at the written request of either party, which shall also include the expected agenda.

**Section 2.** A joint Union and County Uniform Committee shall be established to review uniform issues affecting employees within the negotiations unit. Each party shall designate up to two (2) members of the Committee. The Employer shall schedule a meeting of the Committee at the written request of either party, which shall also include the expected agenda.

ARTICLE 20 GENERAL

Section 1. The Employer and the Union hereby agree that they shall not discriminate

against any employee because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, ancestry, religion,

marital status, domestic partnership status, sexual or affectional orientation, gender identity or

expression, political affiliation, mental or physical or perceived disability, age, familial status,

liability for service in the Armed Forces of the United States, union membership, union non-

membership or union activity, in compliance with all applicable federal and state statutes, rules,

and regulations. No employee shall be transferred because of legal Union activities.

Section 2. The Union will be notified of any adopted resolutions or published County

policies affecting the terms and conditions of employment of employees within the negotiations

unit. Such notification will be made to the Union, through its President, Chief Steward and any

other designee(s), within ten (10) business days following the date such resolution is adopted or

policy is published.

Section 3. Employees shall maintain any required licenses or certifications required for

the performance of their job duties. All field staff (except trainees) must maintain a current New

Jersey Department of Environmental Protection pesticide applicator's license. The County shall

pay the cost for the annual renewal of this license, as well as any training credits needed for

recertification of the license. Trainees must obtain a pesticide applicator's license within one (1)

year of hire.

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017

May 20, 2016 Version - FINAL

## ARTICLE 21 NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT

Section 1. There shall be no lockouts, strikes, work stoppages or slowdowns of any kind during the life of this Agreement. No officer or representative of the Union shall authorize, institute or condone any such activity. No employee shall participate in any such activity. The Employer shall have the right to take disciplinary action, including discharge, against any employee participating in a violation of the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE 22 COMPLETE AGREEMENT

Section 1. The Employer and the Union agree that this Agreement is the complete

agreement between them and that no other understandings or agreements and no past practices

shall be binding on the Employer or the Union during the term of this Agreement unless agreed

to in writing between the Employer and the Union subsequent to the date of execution of the

Agreement.

Section 2. This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final

understanding and settlement by the parties of all bargainable issues that were or could have

been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be

required to negotiate with respect to any such matter, whether or not covered by this Agreement,

and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the

time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

Section 3. It is the intent of the parties that the provisions of this Agreement, except

where noted in this Agreement, will supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral or

written, expressed or implied, between the parties, shall govern their entire relationship, and shall

be the sole source of all rights or claims which may be asserted. The Union, for the life of this

Agreement, hereby waives any right to request to negotiate or bargain with respect to any matters

contained in this Agreement. It is mutually understood that this clause is a clear waiver as to any

right or claim not expressed in this Agreement.

Section 4. This Agreement is separate and distinct from and independent of all other

agreements entered into between the Union and other employer organizations, irrespective of any

similarity between this Agreement and any such other agreements. No act or thing done by the

Monmouth County and CWA 1075 (Mosquito) Collective Negotiations Agreement 2015-2017 parties to such other agreements, or notices given under the provisions thereof, shall change or modify this Agreement, or in any manner affect the contractual relationship of the parties hereto.

**Section 5.** This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing executed by both parties.

# ARTICLE 23 DURATION

This Agreement shall be effective January 1, 2015 and shall continue in force and effect until December 31, 2017.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Agreement to be executed by its fully authorized representatives this day of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 2016.

MONMOUTH COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN-FREEHOLDERS

Thomas A. Arnone, Freeholder Director

Teri O'Connor, County Administrator **CWA LOCAL 1075** 

Cevin P. Tauro, President

Dawn Brown, Chief Steward

RESOLUTION ADOPTING POLICY CONCERNING THE COUNTY'S SELF-FUNDED HEALTH CARE BENEFIT PLAN OPTIONS FOR RETIREES

WITH TWENTY FIVE (25) OR MORE YEARS OF SERVICE AND CHANGES IN POLICY CONCERNING RETIREMENT WITH HEALTH BENEFITS AT NO COST AS WELL AS CESSATION OF OFFERING THE COUNTY'S SELF-FUNDED INDEMNITY HEALTH CARE PLAN TO NEW EMPLOYEES

Freeholder HANDLIN

offered the following

résolution and moved its adoption:

WHEREAS, Monmouth County has paid the cost of Health Benefits for retirees in the County's Self-Funded Employee Health Benefit Indemnity Plan (except those who elect a deferred retirement but including a disability retirement regardless of service) with twenty five (25) or more years of service in a state recognized pension system or with twenty five (25) or more years of continuous service with Monmouth County regardless of whether they have been in a state recognized pension plan system; and

whereas, Monmouth County paid these costs for retirees without regard to the date that such retirees accumulated twenty five (25) or more years of service in a state recognized pension system and without regard to the date that such retirees accumulated twenty five (25) or more years of service with Monmouth County regardless of whether they had been in state recognized pension plan system; and

WHEREAS, Monmouth County has offered its Self-Funded Employee Health Benefit Indemnity Plan to all eligible new employees; and

WHEREAS, the Monmouth County Board of Chosen Freeholders has determined that based upon service as of June 30, 1994, it shall be determined when an employee opts to retire with twenty five (25) or more years of service in a state recognized pension system or with twenty five (25) or more years of continuous service with Monmouth County, whether such person may at his/her

discretion, choose either the Self-Funded Indemnity Plan or the Self-Funded Point-of-Service Plan as their health benefit retirement plan at no cost or whether such person can only choose the Self-Funded Point-of-Service Plan as their health benefit retirement plan at no cost.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Monmouth that employees who have twenty five (25) or more years of service in a state recognized pension system and that employees who have twenty five (25) or more years of continuous service with Monmouth County on June 30, 1994 will when they retire be able to opt for health benefits at no cost either in the County's Self-Funded Indemnity Plan or in the County's Self-Funded Point-of-Service Plan.

 $\mathscr{P}_{\mathsf{Z}}$ 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that employees who have fifteen (15) or more but less than twenty five (25) years of service in a state recognized pension system and that employees who have fifteen (15) or more but less than twenty five (25) years of continuous service with Monmouth County on June 30, 1994 will when they retire with twenty five (25) or more years of service be able to opt for health benefits at no cost either in the County's Self-Funded Indemnity Plan or in the County's Self-Funded Point-of-Service Plan.

₩3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that employees who have less than fifteen years of service in a state recognized pension system and that employees who have less than fifteen years of continuous service with the County on June 30, 1994 will be entitled to health benefits at no cost only in the County's Self-Funded Point-of-Service Plan and said retirees will (not) have the option to purchase the County's Self-Funded Indemnity Plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any new employee hired after July 1, 1994 will not, regardless of their years of service anywhere, be allowed to retire from Monmouth County with any health benefits at no cost.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any employee hired by the County on or after July 1, 1994 will not be permitted to enroll in the County's Self-Funded Indemnity Plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all active employees hired on or before June 30, 1994 will be able to participate in either the County's Self-Funded Indemnity Plan by having the appropriate deduction made from each paycheck or in the County's Self-Funded Point-of-Service Plan at no cost and that all of these actives employees may, during their active employment only, choose between

the Self-Funded Indemnity Plan and the Self-Funded Pointof-Service Plan each year during the Open Enrollment period only.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk forward a true certified copy of this resolution to the County Administrator, County Personnel Officer and the Benefits Coordinator.

Seconded by Freeholder STOPPIELLO adopted on roll call by the following vote:

In the Affirmative: Mrs. Handlin, Mr. Stoppiello.

Mr. Narozanick, Mr. Powers,

and Director Larrison

In the Negative: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Моле

> CERTIFICATION YOU BUST A SE OF BYDEA BHT YETRED YESREN I OF A RESOLUTION ADDPTED BY THE BOARD OF THOSEN PREEHOLDERS OF THE COUNTY OF MONHOUTH AT A MEETING HELD COUNTY OF MONHOUTH AT A

#### MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

# THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH -ANDCWA LOCAL 1075 (Mosquito Division Unit)

Whereas, the County of Monmouth ("County") and CWA Local 1075 ("Union"), representing certain employees working at the Monmouth County Mosquito Division, have conducted collective negotiations for an initial Collective Negotiations Agreement ("Agreement") between the parties; and,

Whereas, the parties have reached a tentative agreement on all issues which were the subject of negotiations as set forth in this Memorandum of Understanding ("Memorandum"); and,

Now, therefore, the parties agree to implement the terms of the Agreement as follows, which shall be effective as of January 1, 2015 unless stated otherwise herein:

#### 1. <u>Initial Collective Negotiations Agreement:</u>

The terms and conditions of employment for Mosquito Division employees have been developed into the attached Agreement, which is incorporated herein. Upon approval of this Memorandum, the parties shall promptly execute the Agreement and abide by its terms.

#### 2. Health Benefits:

The parties further agree to execute the Addendum that is attached hereto regarding changes to the County's health care and pharmaceutical plans and incorporate same into the new Agreement.

#### 3. Duration:

This Agreement shall have a term from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017.

4. Ratification: This Memorandum is subject to ratification by the appropriate representatives of the County of Monmouth, through the Monmouth County Board of Chosen Freeholders, as well as the membership of the Union. If applicable, both negotiation teams agree to affirmatively recommend the ratification of this Memorandum.

## NOTE: SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW ADDENDUM

#### ADDENDUM – HEALTH CARE AND PHARMACEUTICAL PLAN CHANGES

WHEREAS, due to the growth of the County's health care and pharmacy costs, and the associated cost to its employees, it is understood that certain cost containment measures are required in order for the County to be able to maintain the high level of benefits provided to County employees; and,

WHEREAS, it is further understood that due to certain provisions of the federal Affordable Care Act ("ACA"), it is critical that the County begin the process of finding health care cost savings, as it faces the potential for millions of dollars of fines in future years if its health care costs exceed the amount permitted by the ACA; and,

WHEREAS, the County's Benefits Department, in consultation with the County's health care and pharmaceutical plan administrators, have proposed numerous modifications to the County's health care and pharmaceutical plans where it is believed that substantial savings can be achieved at limited burden to the County's employees and dependents; and,

WHEREAS, while the County does not concede the negotiability of any or all of these modifications, it wishes to avoid any future Union challenges to them given their importance; and,

WHEREAS, the Union reserves all rights, claims and defenses as to any changes in the County's health and pharmaceutical plans not specifically set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Union agrees that the County shall have the right to implement any or all the following changes to its health care and pharmaceutical plans in its discretion at any time on or after January 1, 2016 so long as no such changes are implemented for Union employees until such time as they are simultaneously implemented for the County's non-represented employees;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County shall provide at least sixty (60) days prior written notice before implementing any or all of the changes listed herein, but the Union shall have no right to demand negotiations as to whether or not they shall be implemented, nor shall the Union have any right to file any grievance, unfair practice, lawsuit, or other legal challenge in any forum relating to the County's decision to implement any or all of these changes provided said changes are made in accordance with this Agreement.

#### **HEALTH CARE PLAN MODIFICATIONS**

1. The County may increase OOP (Out of Pocket) maximums for out-of-network treatment as follows: Family OOP maximums may be increased from \$5,000 per year to no more than \$10,000 per year. Single OOP maximums may be increased from \$2,500 per year to no more than \$5,000 per year.

05/25/2016 08:29 #396 P.004/005

- 2. The County may increase the co-payment for utilizing emergency room services from \$25 per visit to no greater than \$100 per visit. The existing policy of waiving the co-payment when an ER visit results in admission to a hospital shall remain in force.
- 3. The County may revise its pricing schedule for out-of-network treatment to modify the "reasonable and customary" rate used to calculate reimbursement for such out-of-network treatment to no less than 150% of the rate established by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services.

#### PHARMACY PLAN MODIFICATIONS

- 1. The County may implement a "network narrowing" plan to reasonably limit the pharmacies from which members may purchase pharmaceuticals, which shall consist of removing one (1) of the following three (3) national pharmacy chains (or their successors in interest) from the County's network: (1) Walgreens, (2) Rite-Aid, (3) CVS.
- 2. The County may implement "step therapy" procedures when, within a specific therapy class, multiple drugs are available to treat the same condition. In such instance, a patient will be required to first try clinically effective generic or lower-cost brand medications, before "stepping-up" to a higher cost medication. If, after the patient tries the generic or lower-cost medication, the patient's physician determines that a higher-cost medication is medically required, the physician may contact the County's pharmacy benefits manager for a coverage review and to request authorization for that higher-cost medication. Provided the physician fully cooperates with the pharmacy benefits manager in this process, such authorization shall normally be granted within three (3) days. A current list of drugs for which "step therapy" will apply will be provided to the Union.
- 3. The County may implement a "dispense as written" policy in which members are subject to the use of generic prescription drugs according to State guidelines, and if a member insists on a brand drug when a generic drug is available, the member will be required to pay both the "brand" co-pay as well as the entire difference in actual cost between the brand drug and the generic drug. This provision shall not be applicable if the prescribing physician writes "DAW" or "dispensed as written" or checks the "do not substitute" box on the prescription.
- 4. The County may implement a "prior authorization and quantity duration" policy in which it may ensure via a series of clinical safety edits that FDA and other clinical guidelines are being followed in treatment in order to ensure best safety outcomes. For drugs that are not needed every day such as sleep aids, or migraine treatments, supply per prescription will be reduced in accordance with the policy, for example, a particular prescription may be reduced from 30 doses to 8 at retail and from 90 doses to 24 at mail, unless the prescribing physician establishes that a larger quantity is needed due to medical necessity. A current list of drugs for which "prior authorization and quantity duration" will apply will be provided to the Union.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized officers.

For the Union:

Forthe County of Monmouth:

Steven Welning, Special Cardy Carel

Dated: 5/23, 2016

Dated:5/25, 2016